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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Grace United Methodist Church complex is located on the north­ 
west corner of the intersection of Carrera and Cordova Streets and is 
comprised of two primary components - the church and the former parsonage. 
The two are connected by an open (screened) arcade behind which the 
original attached Sunday school facilities are located. A low concrete 
wall, of the same material as the buildings, follows the perimeter of 
the property.

The original buildings were designed in a style reflective of the 
Spanish Rennaisance and were constructed of poured, monolithic concrete 
with exposed shell aggregate. The gray wall surfaces are largely planar 
except for geometric relief from recessed arches, massive buttresses and 
round-headed windows and the striated effect left by the original narrow 
board frame work. Color and textural relief are provided by red brick 
and terra cotta trim used for the piers and archivolts of the entrance 
loggia, the rose window surround also in the entrance (south) facade, 
the flush quoins, corbelling and luxurious detailing on the fenestration 
of the tower in the parsonage. Additional contrast is provided by the 
red Spanish tile used on all the major roofed areas as well as the tower's 
spire. The roofs of the secondary apses along the north end of the church 
and the educational facilities also extending from the north are sheathed 
with composition shingles.

The hall plan church has deep shed-roofed side aisles and is entered 
from the south through a three-bay arcaded loggia. The three-stage tower 
rises form the southwest end of the loggia while a small office is 
located off the southeast end. Three semi-octagonal apses project from 
the north end of the church; the center one; the chancel, being larger 
and open to the nave. The others are subsidiary rooms.

The church interior is relatively austere having plaster wall 
surfaces with wood used for wainscoting, piers, pews, a rear gallery and 
the chancel furnishings, as well as the open-trussed roof. Much of the 
interior was repaired and remodeled in 1956. The renovation included 
refinishing the walls and woodwork, remodeling the chancel and choir 
loft, rewiring and adding new light fixtures, installing a heating and 
air conditioning system in the northeast and central apses, and purchasing 
new pews.

The former parsonage, to the west of the church, is basically a 
two-story building with a low hip-roofed tower and a one-story section 
further to the west. Architectural detailing is spare and confined to 
the bracketted wood cornice, the red brick and terra cotta architraves 
of the third-story windows and the geometry of the paired round-headed 
windows set within relieving arches on the first story. Except for the 
rear (north) slope of the two-story section, the parsonage roof is also 
sheathed with Red Spanish tile. In 1947, the original parsonage was 
converted to an educational building 2 and a two-story concrete block

See Continuation Sheet
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shed-roofed section was added along the north (rear) facade to the 
one-story Sunday school facilities which were built as part of the 
original building.

Irene Liody Williams, History of Grace Methodist Church, 
St. Augustine, Florida, St. Augustine,1962.Allinformation on 
alterations.

Ibid.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Grace United Methodist Church is significant as one of the major 
elements of Henry Morrison Flagler's scheme for the promotion and develop­ 
ment of St. Augustine, Florida, as an exclusive winter resort in the 
1880's. The church and its attached parsonage comprise one of the four 
Spanish Renaissance Revival Style buildings designed by the New York 
architectural firm of John M. Carrere and Thomas Hastings and constructed 
of poured concrete, a little-used material up to this date. The other 
three buildings are the Ponce de Leon (NR), the Alcazar and Memorial 
Presbyterian Church.

In the mid-1880's, Henry Flagler, A Gilded Age entrepreneur who 
had amassed a fortune as one of the founders of the Standard Oil Company, 
saw great possibilities in making St. Augustine an exclusive resort for 
the winter season, complementing Newport's (Rhode Island) role as a 
fashionable summer resort.1 To accommodate visitors, Flagler planned and 
constructed two elaborate hotels, the Hotel Ponce de Leon and the Alcazar, 
adjacent to Tolomato Street (now Cordova Street), the western limit of 
the colonial city. The site to be selected for the Alcazar, however, 
was occupied by the recently-constructed (1884) Olivet Methodist Episcopal 
Church. Not dismayed, Flagler, a Presbyterian, proposed to the Methodist 
church trustees that in return for the church property at the corner of 
Tolomato and King Streets, he would deed to them the land he owned at 
the corner of Carrera and Cordova Streets, and would construct and donate 
to them a magnificent church and parsonage, structures that would compla- 
ment the elegant hotels. The trustees accepted his offer. Construction 
of the Grace -.Methodist Chruch commenced in 1886. The complex was completed 
in late 1887 for an estimated cost of $85,000, an amount greater than 
Flagler had originally intended to spend. The first services were held 
on Sunday, January 1, 1888, with its dedication by Bishop W. F. Mallalien 
taking place two weeks later.2

The work of Carrere and Hastings in St. Augustine is especially 
significant because of the successful integration of an architectural 
style (Spanish Renaissance) and a method of construction" (poured concrete) 
which are consistent with the historical context of the community (a 
Spanish colonial city) and yet allowed the use of the building materials 
(sand and shell aggregate) appropriate for the physical environment. 
Hurricanes were an ever-present danger and necessitated structures

See Continuation Sheet
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capable of withstanding severe winds. The concrete walls and foundations 
(sand, shell and cement in a 2:5:1 ratio)^ were poured in thin layers 
into wooden forms. The result was as extremely rigid, monolithic 
structure.^

Aesthetically, the austere grey wall surfaces .with exposed shell 
aggregate proved an excellent foil for the red brick and terra cotta 
detailing lavished on door and window openings as well as the upper levels 
of the tower. The design solution was thus consistent with the archi­ 
tectural tradition of the Spanish Renaissance where lavish detailing 
was restricted to very specific areas. When judged with the Hotel 
Ponce de Leon and the Memorial Presbyterian Church, the Grace United 
Methodist Church is one of the most impressive and cohesive architectural 
complexes dating from the late nineteenth century in America.

Florida, The American Riviera; St. Augustine, The Winter Newport, 
Carrere and Hastings: New York, 1887.

This information has been extracted from Irene Liody Williams,
History of Garce Methodist Church, St. Augustine, Florida, St. Augustine,__ ——————————————————————————————————————————

Thomas Graham, "Flagler's Magnificent Hotel Ponce de Leon," 
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Carl W. Condit, American Building, Chicago and London: The Univer­ 
sity of Chicago Press, 1968, p. 159.
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